You can view the agenda on the website
or use a smart phone camera and scan the code
To:

County Hall
Topsham Road
Exeter
Devon
EX2 4QD

The Chair and Members of the
Farms Estate Committee

Date: 4 June 2021

Contact: Wendy Simpson, 01392 384383
Email: wendy.simpson@devon.gov.uk
FARMS ESTATE COMMITTEE
Monday, 14th June, 2021

A meeting of the Farms Estate Committee is to be held on the above date at 2.15 pm
in the Clinton/Fortescue room, County Hall, Exeter EX2 4QD to consider the
following matters.
Phil Norrey
Chief Executive
AGENDA

PART I - OPEN COMMITTEE
1

Apologies for Absence

2

Minutes
Minutes of the meeting held on 22 February 2021 (previously circulated).

3

Items Requiring Urgent Attention
Items which in the opinion of the Chairman should be considered at the meeting
as matters of urgency.
MATTERS FOR DECISION

4

Revenue Monitoring (Final Outturn 2020/21), Revenue Budget 2021/22 and
Revenue Monitoring (Month 1) 2021/22 (Pages 1 - 8)
Report of the County Treasurer (CT/21/50) on the County Farms Estate Revenue
Monitoring, attached.
Electoral Divisions(s): All Divisions

5

Capital Monitoring (Final Outturn) 2020/21, Capital Budget 2021/22 and Capital
Monitoring (Month 1) 2021/22 (Pages 9 - 12)
Report of the County Treasurer (CT/21/51) on the County Farms Estate Capital
Monitoring, attached.
Electoral Divisions(s): All Divisions

6

The County Farms Estate - Annual Report 2020/21 (Pages 13 - 22)
Report of the County Treasurer (CT/21/52) on the County Farms Estate Annual
Report 2020/21, attached.
Electoral Divisions(s): All Divisions

7

Management and Restructuring Issues (Pages 23 - 26)
Report of the Head of Digital Transformation and Business Support (BSS/21/06)
on Management and Restructuring Issues, attached.
Electoral Divisions(s): Braunton Rural;
Ipplepen & The Kerswells
PART II - ITEMS WHICH MAY BE TAKEN IN THE ABSENCE OF PRESS AND
PUBLIC
None

Members are reminded that Part II Reports contain exempt information and should
therefore be treated accordingly. They should not be disclosed or passed on to any
other person(s). They need to be disposed of carefully and should be returned to the
Democratic Services Officer at the conclusion of the meeting for disposal.

MEETINGS INFORMATION AND NOTES FOR VISITORS
Getting to County Hall and Notes for Visitors
For SatNav purposes, the postcode for County Hall is EX2 4QD
Further information about how to get to County Hall gives information on visitor
parking at County Hall and bus routes.
Exeter has an excellent network of dedicated cycle routes. For further information
see the Travel Devon webpages.
The nearest mainline railway stations are Exeter Central (5 minutes from the High
Street), St David’s and St Thomas. All have regular bus services to the High Street.
Visitors to County Hall are asked to report to Main Reception on arrival. If visitors
have any specific requirements, please contact reception on 01392 382504
beforehand.
Membership of a Committee
For full details of the Membership of a Committee, please visit the Committee page
on the website and click on the name of the Committee you wish to see.
Committee Terms of Reference
For the terms of reference for any Committee, please visit the Committee page on
the website and click on the name of the Committee. Under purpose of Committee,
the terms of reference will be listed. Terms of reference for all Committees are also
detailed within Section 3b of the Council’s Constitution.
Access to Information
Any person wishing to inspect any minutes, reports or background papers relating to
an item on the agenda should contact the Clerk of the Meeting. To find this, visit the
Committee page on the website and find the Committee. Under contact information
(at the bottom of the page) the Clerk’s name and contact details will be present. All
agenda, reports and minutes of any Committee are published on the Website
Public Participation
The Council operates a Public Participation Scheme where members of the public
can interact with various Committee meetings in a number of ways. For full details of
whether or how you can participate in a meeting, please look at the Public
Participation Scheme or contact the Clerk for the meeting.
In relation to Highways and Traffic Orders Committees, any member of the District
Council or a Town or Parish Councillor for the area covered by the HATOC who is
not a member of the Committee, may attend and speak to any item on the Agenda
with the consent of the Committee, having given 24 hours’ notice.
Webcasting, Recording or Reporting of Meetings and Proceedings
The proceedings of any meeting may be recorded and / or broadcasted live, apart
from any confidential items which may need to be considered in the absence of the
press and public. For more information go to our webcasting pages

Anyone wishing to film part or all of the proceedings may do so unless the press and
public are excluded for that part of the meeting or there is good reason not to do so,
as directed by the Chair. Filming must be done as unobtrusively as possible without
additional lighting; focusing only on those actively participating in the meeting and
having regard to the wishes of others present who may not wish to be filmed.
Anyone wishing to film proceedings is asked to advise the Chair or the Democratic
Services Officer in attendance.
Members of the public may also use social media to report on proceedings.
Declarations of Interest for Members of the Council
It is to be noted that Members of the Council must declare any interest they may
have in any item to be considered at this meeting, prior to any discussion taking
place on that item.
WiFI
An open, publicly available Wi-Fi network (i.e. DCC) is normally available for
meetings held in the Committee Suite at County Hall.
Fire
In the event of the fire alarm sounding, leave the building immediately by the nearest
available exit following the fire exit signs. If doors fail to unlock press the Green
break glass next to the door. Do not stop to collect personal belongings; do not use
the lifts; and do not re-enter the building until told to do so. Assemble either on the
cobbled car parking area adjacent to the administrative buildings or in the car park
behind Bellair.
First Aid
Contact Main Reception (Extension 2504) for a trained first aider.
Mobile Phones
Please switch off all mobile phones before entering the Committee Room or Council
Chamber
Alternative Formats

If anyone needs a copy of an Agenda and/or a Report in
another format (e.g. large print, audio tape, Braille or other
languages), please contact the Customer Service Centre on
0345 155 1015 or email: committee@devon.gov.uk or write to
the Democratic and Scrutiny Secretariat in G31, County Hall,
Exeter, EX2 4QD.
Induction Loop available

2.

Agenda Item 4
CT/21/50
Farms Estate Committee
14 June 2021
The County Farms Estate
Revenue Monitoring (Final Outturn) 2020/21, Revenue Budget 2021/22, and
Revenue Monitoring (Month 1) 2021/22
Report of the County Treasurer
Please note that the following recommendations are subject to consideration
and determination by the Committee before taking effect.
Recommendation: that the Committee endorse the report
1

Revenue Monitoring (Final Outturn) 2020/21

1.1

The Revenue Budget presented to Corporate Infrastructure and
Regulatory Services Scrutiny Committee on 28 January 2020 and
approved at County Council on 20 February 2020 included a target
surplus of £464,000 for the County Farms Estate.

1.2

Appendix A provides a summary of the annual budget and the year-end
outturn alongside three previous years outturns so that a year on year
comparison of performance can be made.

1.3

Rent invoiced by year end amounted to £1,084,719 and other income
(easement and wayleave payments, licence fees, telecommunication
mast site rents etc) accrued by year end amounted to £35,848.

1.4

The month 10 monitoring position was reported to the Farms Estate
Committee at its meeting of 22 February 2021 (CT/21/19 refers). At
year end there has been £327,000 further expenditure to report.

1.5

Some significant new Tenant Right Valuation accruals have been made
at year end for liabilities falling due before 31 March 2021. The total
commitment on end of tenancy compensation payments to tenants
amounted to £37,031.

1.6

£69,064 worth of unforeseen repair works ordered in 2020/21 were
either paid or accrued for works substantially complete at year end.

1.7

£255,414 worth of programmed repair and maintenance works ordered
in 2020/21 were either paid or accrued for works substantially complete
at year end.

1.8

£5,438 was invested in quinquennial condition surveys in year to inform
future maintenance programmes.

Page 1

Agenda Item 4
1.9

£25,060 has been spent on servicing and testing landlord’s equipment
(electrical systems, gas and oil-fired boilers, private water systems,
sewage treatment plants etc) at year end. This is a significant increase
on the previous year’s costs.

1.10 £5,481 building maintenance (other) works were completed by year
end. This comprised a number of health and safety improvements,
asbestos removal and redundant building demolition. No Land Agent
Initiative investments in improved infrastructure were carried out.
1.11 £20,103 was spent on roadside tree inspections and subsequent tree
surgery works by year end. Again, this is a significant increase on the
previous year’s expenditure due to the frequency of inspections
increasing to annually and the increasing volume of essential works
arising as a consequence of ash die back.
1.12 Expenditure on NPS fees was £210,520. This includes the
management of the Estate and procuring all programme and
unforeseen maintenance, service term contracts, asbestos, health and
safety and redundant building works. This cost is down on previous
years due to a member of staff being furloughed during the initial
Covid-19 lockdown and the two Farmwise events being cancelled due
to the Covid-19 pandemic risks.
1.13 The final outturn provides a net surplus of £467,374 compared to the
target surplus of £464,000.
2

Revenue Budget 2021/22

2.1

The Revenue Budget presented to Corporate Infrastructure and
Regulatory Services Scrutiny Committee on 28 January 2021 and
approved at County Council on 18 February 2021 included a target
surplus of £464,000 for the County Farms Estate.

2.2

Appendix B provides a summary of the annual budget.

3

Revenue Monitoring for the period 1 April 2021 to 30 April 2021

3.1

Appendix B provides details of income and expenditure to date.

3.2

As at month 1 expenditure totals £31,878 before prior year accruals of
£97,843. This generates a net credit of £65,965 as shown in the
Appendix B.

Page 2

Agenda Item 4
3.3

Minimal income has been invoiced so far this year. Most rent is paid in
arrears with the first payments due at the end of month 6 and the
balance to be invoiced at the end of month 12. Forecasts indicate that
income is expected to exceed budget by £27,000.

3.4

Three Tenant Right Valuation accruals are still not yet capable of being
released as the end of tenancy valuations are not concluded.

3.5

Total unforeseen maintenance expenditure and commitment at month
1 is therefore £4,956. The year-end forecast remains £100,000, as per
budget.

3.6

The revenue funded maintenance programme has been set with both
the budget and forecast of £237,000. Detailed allocations are in the
process of being prepared.

3.7

At month 1 there is yet to be any spend on works to redundant
buildings, asbestos removal and health and safety improvements. The
year-end forecast remains £61,000, as per budget.

3.8

Spend on testing and inspection works (service term contracts for
private water supplies, boilers, fixed wiring systems, sewage treatment
plants, radon fans etc) is minimal had at month 1.

3.9

The programmed tree survey work has a budget of £13,000 with the
expectation that this will be fully spent by year end.

3.10 It is anticipated the building maintenance survey budget of £10,000 will
be fully committed.
3.11 It is currently anticipated that the forecast year end level of income and
expenditure will be achieved, and the target surplus delivered, albeit
there may be some fluctuations within income and expenditure items.
4.

Options/Alternatives

4.1

Alternative options have been considered and discounted as they are
believed to either be contrary to current Estate policy and/or not in the
best financial interests of the Estate.

5.

Consultations/Representations/Technical Data

5.1

The views and opinions of the Devon Federation of Young Farmers
Clubs and the Estate Tenants Association will be presented by the two
co-opted members to the committee.

5.2

No other parties have been consulted and no other representations have
been received

Page 3

Agenda Item 4
5.3

The technical data is believed to be true and accurate.

6.

Financial Considerations

6.1

The Author is not aware of any financial issues arising from this report.

7.

Legal Considerations

7.1

The Author is not aware of any legal issues arising from this report.

8.

Environmental Impact Considerations (Including Climate Change)

8.1

The Author is not aware of any environmental impact (including climate
change) issues arising from this report.

9.

Equality Considerations

9.1

The Author is not aware of any equality issues arising from this report.

10.

Risk Management Considerations

10.1

The Author is not aware of any obvious risks to manage.

11.

Public Health Impact

11.1

The Author is not aware of any public health impact.

12.

Summary/Conclusions/Reasons for Recommendations

12.1

The Author has prepared this report in accordance with the findings of
the County Farms Estate Strategic Review (April 2010).

Name
Mary Davis – County Treasurer

Electoral Divisions: All
Local Government Act 1972: List of Background Papers

Page 4

Agenda Item 4
Contact for Enquiries:
Name: Dan Meek, Director of Property Management, NPS South West Ltd,
Venture House, One Capital Court, Bittern Road, Sowton Industrial Estate,
Exeter, EX2 7FW
Contact: 01392 351066 or dan.meek@nps.co.uk
Name: Lisa Beynon, Head Accountant for Corporate Services, County
Treasurer’s, County Hall, Exeter
Contact: 01392 382876 or lisa.beynon@devon.gov.uk
Background Paper

Date

File Reference

Nil
The above mentioned Reports are published on the Council’s Website at:
http://democracy.devon.gov.uk/ieDocHome.aspx?bcr=1

Page 5

Agenda Item 4
APPENDIX A

COUNTY FARMS ESTATE - FINANCIAL REPORTS
FINANCIAL STATEMENT - FINAL OUTTURN 2020/21

INCOME
Rent
Other
TOTAL INCOME

2020/21

2020/21

2019/20

2018/19

2017/18

ANNUAL TARGET

OUTTURN

OUTTURN

OUTTURN

OUTTURN

£'000

£'000

£'000

£'000

£'000

(1,124)
(40)
(1,164)

(1,085)
(36)
(1,121)

(1,149)
(27)
(1,176)

(1,075)
(33)
(1,108)

(1,055)
(43)
(1,098)

20

37

87

25

114

20

37

87

25

114

100
210
10
20

69
255
5
25

86
153
4
8

80
242
11
18

81
228
2
7

61

6

101

11

7

10
14
6
431

20
11
7
398

10
11
15
388

7
14
10
393

2
14
3
344

0
2
230
4
6
7
249

0
1
211
1
6
0
219

0
1
223
1
10
2
237

0
6
264
1
3
4
278

0
3
235
(1)
7
2
246

700

654

712

696

704

(464)

(467)

(464)

(412)

(394)

EXPENDITURE
STATUTORY COSTS
Tenant Right Valuation
SUB - TOTAL

PREMISES COSTS
Building Maintenance - unforseen
Building Maintenance - programmed
Building Maintenance - Surveys
Building Maintenance - STC
Building Maintenance - other (incl. land agents
initiatives, redundant buildings, asbestos and health &
safety)
Grounds Maintenance
Rents & other landlord charges
Rates, Electricity and Water Charges
SUB - TOTAL

SUPPLIES & SERVICES
Insurance
Adverts
NPS Fees
Legal Fees
Professional Fees
Other Fees & Charges (DFYF, SHLAA, GPDO)
SUB - TOTAL
TOTAL EXPENDITURE

NET OPERATIONAL (SURPLUS)/DEFICIT

Page 6

Agenda Item 4
APPENDIX B

COUNTY FARMS ESTATE - FINANCIAL REPORTS
FINANCIAL STATEMENT - (MONTH 1) 2021-22
YEAR
TO DATE
INCOME
Rent
Other
TOTAL INCOME

ANNUAL
TARGET

CURRENT
FORECAST

£'000

£'000

£'000

0
(8)
(8)

(1,124)
(40)
(1,164)

(1,151)
(40)
(1,191)

(52)

20

20

(52)

20

20

(4)
(18)
0
(5)

100
210
10
20

100
237
10
20

0

61

61

(4)
0
9
(22)

13
11
6
431

13
11
6
458

0
0
15
0
(7)
0
8

0
2
230
4
6
7
249

0
2
230
4
6
7
249

(66)

700

727

(74)

(464)

(464)

EXPENDITURE
STATUTORY COSTS
Tenant Right Valuation
SUB - TOTAL

PREMISES COSTS
Building Maintenance - unforseen
Building Maintenance - programmed
Building Maintenance - Surveys
Building Maintenance - STC
Building Maintenance - other (incl. land agents initiatives,
redundant buildings, asbestos and health & safety)
Grounds Maintenance
Rents & other landlord charges
Rates, Electricity and Water Charges
SUB - TOTAL

SUPPLIES & SERVICES
Insurance
Adverts
NPS Fees
Legal Fees
Professional Fees
Other Fees & Charges (DFYF, SHLAA, GPDO)
SUB - TOTAL

TOTAL EXPENDITURE

NET OPERATIONAL (SURPLUS)

Page 7

Agenda Item 5
CT/21/51
Farms Estate Committee
14 June 2021
The County Farms Estate
Capital Monitoring (Final Outturn) 2020/21, Capital Budget 2021/22, and
Capital Monitoring (month 1) 2021/22.
Report of the County Treasurer
Recommendation: that the Committee endorse the report
1

Capital Monitoring (Final Outturn) 2020/21

1.1

The Capital budget presented to Corporate Infrastructure and
Regulatory Services Scrutiny Committee on 28 January 2020 and
approved at County Council on 20 February 2020 included schemes
totalling £600,000.

1.2

There was an ‘overspend’ of £30,888 in 2019/20 thus the balance of
capital available to spend in 2020/21 amounts to £569,112.

1.3

To fully fund the decent homes improvements programme without
delaying any works, £600,000 was brought forward at month 8 from the
2021/22 Estates Capital Programme. The revised 2020/21 budget is
therefore £1,169,112. The decision to bring forward the additional
budget referred to herein was made in advance of the latest Covid-19
lockdown.

1.4

The month 10 monitoring position was reported to the Farms Estate
Committee at its meeting of 22 February 2021 (CT/21/18 refers).

1.5

Total spend in 2020/21 amounted to £954,093 resulting in an
underspend against the increased budget provision made at month 8
of £215,019. This ‘slippage’ was largely due to the further Covid-19
lockdown restrictions imposed at the beginning of January 2021.

1.6

There were a number of schemes completed in 2020/21 with some
over or under spend due to variations between estimates and actuals,
or minor contract variances post scheme approval. These were
largely self-balancing and as such required no further action.

2

Nitrate Vulnerable Zone Compliance

2.1

In 2020/21 £321,520 was spent on constructing a new slurry store
complete with a Clean Air Strategy compliant cover.

Page 9

Agenda Item 5
3

Compensation Payments (Tenants Improvements etc…)

3.1

All landlord end of tenancy compensation liabilities arising in year
have been provided for from within the revenue budget. No capital
expenditure has thus been incurred.

4

Enhancements and Improvements

4.1

In 2020/21 £632,573 was spent on seven farmhouse refurbishment
and improvement projects either started and/or completed in year.
The expenditure also includes retention monies released and paid to
contractors who completed schemes in the previous year.

5

Land Acquisitions

5.1

35.51 acres of land were purchased in 2020/21 for which additional
capital funding was secured.

6

Capital Budget 2021/22

6.1

The Capital budget presented to Corporate Infrastructure and
Regulatory Services Scrutiny Committee on 28 January 2021 and
approved at County Council on 18 February 2021 included schemes
totalling £1 million.

6.2

There was an ‘underspend’ of £215,019 in 2020/21 thus the balance
of capital available to spend in 2021/22 amounts to £1,215,019,
subject to the approval of carry forwards at July 2021 Cabinet.

7

Capital Monitoring for the period 1 April 2021 to 30 April 2021

7.1

As at month 1 there is minimal actual expenditure to report.

8.

Nitrate Vulnerable Zone Compliance

8.1

There is now only retention monies left to pay on two slurry stores
constructed in the previous financial years. No new slurry store
schemes are being designed or programmed for this financial year.

8.2

Forecast spend stands at £17,322 on retention monies associated
with NVZ compliant schemes for 2021/22.

9.

Compensation Payments (Tenants Improvements, etc..)

9.1

Forecast spend currently stands at nil, but this excludes any liability
that may fall due in year or at 25 March 2022.

10.

Enhancements and Improvements

10.1

The 2021/22 programme and its forecast is still in development.

Page 10

Agenda Item 5

11.

Land Acquisitions

11.1

No land acquisition opportunities are currently being explored.

12.

Options/Alternatives

12.1

Alternative options have been considered and discounted as they are
believed to either be contrary to current Estate policy and/or not in the
best financial interests of the Estate.

13.

Consultations/Representations/Technical Data

13.1

The views and opinions of the Devon Federation of Young Farmers
Clubs and the Estate Tenants Association will be presented by the two
co-opted members to the committee.

13.2

No other parties have been consulted and no other representations
have been received

13.3

The technical data is believed to be true and accurate.

14.

Financial Considerations

14.1

The Author is not aware of any financial issues arising from this report.

15.

Legal Considerations

15.1

The Author is not aware of any legal issues arising from this report.

16.

Environmental Impact Considerations (Including Climate Change)

16.1

The Author is not aware of any environmental impact (including climate
change) issues arising from this report.

17.

Equality Considerations

17.1

The Author is not aware of any equality issues arising from this report.

18.

Risk Management Considerations

18.1

The Author is not aware of any obvious risks to manage.

Page 11

Agenda Item 5
19.

Public Health Impact

19.1

The Author is not aware of any public health impact.

20.

Summary/Conclusions/Reasons for Recommendations

20.1

The Author has prepared this report in accordance with the findings of
the County Farms Estate Strategic Review (April 2010).

Name
Mary Davis – County Treasurer

Electoral Divisions: All
Local Government Act 1972: List of Background Papers

Contact for Enquiries:
Name: Dan Meek, Director of Property Management, NPS South West Ltd,
Venture House, One Capital Court, Bittern Road, Sowton Industrial Estate,
Exeter, EX2 7FW
Contact: 01392 351066 or dan.meek@nps.co.uk
Name: Lisa Beynon, Head Accountant for Corporate Services, County
Treasurer’s, County Hall, Exeter
Contact: 01392 382876 or lisa.beynon@devon.gov.uk
Background Paper

Date

File Reference

Nil
The above mentioned Reports are published on the Council’s Website at:
http://democracy.devon.gov.uk/ieDocHome.aspx?bcr=1
12.

Page 12

Agenda Item 6
CT/21/52
Farms Estate Committee
14 June 2021
The County Farms Estate – Annual Report 2020/21
Report of the County Treasurer
Please note that the following recommendations are subject to consideration and
determination by the Committee before taking effect.
Recommendation: that the Committee endorse the annual report
1.

Summary

1.1

This is the thirtieth annual report of the County Farms Estate.

2.

Introduction

2.1

It has been a tumultuous year for the Estate due to the ongoing effects of the
Covid-19 pandemic and associated movement restrictions. Managing the
estate and organising farm reletting viewing days and interviews in a Covid19 safe and compliant manner was a logistical and resource hungry
challenge, as was procuring revenue funded repairs and maintenance and
capital works. The impact on several tenant’s businesses was initially
significant and worrying. Affected businesses were supported and signposted
to government grant and loan schemes as well as other resources. Some
businesses, particularly farm shops, saw an increase in turnover during
lockdown. At year end it is hoped and believed all tenant’s businesses have
weathered the storm and will survive.

2.2

This report is divided into the following sections:
-

Committee Functions
Financial Performance
Estate Management Performance
Other Notable Estate Achievements and Events

3.

Meetings and other activities of the Farms Estate Committee 2020/21

3.1

The Farms Estate Committee met (virtually) on 21 September and 7
December 2020, and 22 February 2021. The meeting of 18 May 2020 was
cancelled. In addition to the usual financial and management matters other
issues discussed by the Committee included:
- Annual Report 2019/20
- Monitoring of tenants on initial Farm Business Tenancies
- Requests for extensions of tenancy
- Requests for Landlord’s consent for Tenant’s Improvements
- Collaboration with the North Devon UNESCO Biosphere Reserve
Partnership
- The Agriculture Act 2020
- The Agricultural Transition Plan
- Progress report on farmhouse refurbishment programme
- Interim Devon Carbon Plan 2020

Page 13

Agenda Item 6
3.2

The Chairman wrote to the Right Honourable George Eustice MP on the
Agricultural Act 2020 - proposed New Entrant Scheme, which was followed
by an invitation for the Chairman and Senior Land Agent to meet with
DEFRA officers as part of the Scheme ‘Co-design’.

3.3

Interview panels met (in person) on four occasions to interview applicants
for the tenancies of Lower Pilehayes Farm, Woodbury; Bulleigh Elms Farm,
Ipplepen; Buckridge Farm, Denbury; Lomans Farm, Broadhempston;
Southcott Farm, Okehampton and Middle Winsham Farm, Braunton.

3.4

The Chairman, Vice Chairman and the Senior Land Agent also visited the
Parishes of Broadwoodwidger, Dawlish, Denbury, Ermington, Hennock,
High Bickington, Musbury, Roborough, Rockbeare and Rose Ash to
undertake tenant’s monitoring visits.

4

Finance

4.1

The financial performance of the Estate is again analysed in four areas,
namely revenue income and expenditure, capital receipts and capital
investment.

4.2

The Estate revenue budget outturn statement for the year ending 31 March
2021 is appended (Appendix A). Details of some of the key result areas for
the three previous trading years have been included to offer some form of
trend comparator analysis.

4.3

Revenue Income

4.3.1

Rental income from the Estate in 2020/21 was £1,084,719 compared with a
target of £1,124,000.

4.3.2

Miscellaneous income totalled £35,848 compared with a target of £40,000.

4.3.3

Therefore total income secured was £1,120,567 against a target of
£1,164,000.

4.3.4

The primary reason for the shortfall relates to an accrued bad debt for a
former tenant who was served a Notice to Quit for non payment of rent.

Revenue Income
Rental
Miscellaneous
Total

2017/18
£1,055,448
£42,505
£1,097,953

2018/19
£1,075,411
£33,275
£1,108,686

2019/20
£1,148,703
£27,434
£1,176,137

2020/21
£1,084,719
£35,848
£1,120,567

Revenue
Income Analysis
Actual
(a) Per Farm
(b) Per Hectare
(c) As a % of
Target

2017/18

2018/19

2019/20

2020/21

£1,097,953
£16,146
£283
101%

£1,108,686
£17,056
£287
99.5%

£1,176,137
£18,094
£304
101%

£1,120,567
£17,239
£289
96%

Page 14

Agenda Item 6
4.4

Revenue Expenditure

4.4.1 The target spend for 2020/21 on programme and unforeseen repairs and
maintenance was £310,000 of which 68% (£210,000) was planned and 32%
(£100,000) was unforeseen.
4.4.2 There was an overall actual spend of £324,478 on repair and maintenance of
which 79% (£255,414) was planned maintenance and 21% (£69,064) was
unforeseen and reactive work. It is noted that significant inflationary
pressures within the construction industry continues to put immense strain on
this budget and far less work is capable of being delivered year on year for
the same budget provision. Some landlord’s repair and maintenance liabilities
are not therefore capable of being carried out.
Expenditure
Programme
Unforeseen
Total
Maintenance

2017/18
£227,711
£80,888
£308,599

2018/19
£241,666
£80,202
£321,868

2019/20
£152,856
£86,189
£239,045

2020/21
£255,414
£69,064
£324,478

4.4.3 However, in addition to the above maintenance spend, £5,481 was spent on
Landlord’s health and safety improvements, removing and replacing asbestos
and demolishing redundant buildings.
4.4.4 £210,520 was spent in total on professional fees relating to Estate
Management, and the procurement of repairs, maintenance, compliance
management, service term contracts and other works.
4.4.5 £25,060 was spent on servicing plant and equipment on the Estate including
private water supplies, boilers, electrical wiring systems, sewage treatment
plants, radon pumps etc owned by the Landlord. This cost is rising rapidly as
more plant and equipment associated with the farmhouse improvement works
is installed.
4.4.6 £20,103 was spent on roadside tree surgery works arising as a consequence
of periodic surveys and other ground maintenance works. This cost is twice
as much as it was in 2019/20 and forecast to rise further as the health of
Devon’s trees deteriorates and following the frequency of inspections being
increased to an annual cycle.
4.4.7 £5,438 was spent on condition surveys to help inform planned maintenance
programmes and to manage landlord’s risks associated with the Defective
Premises Act 1972 and Occupiers Liability Acts 1957 and 1984.
4.4.8 £37,031 was spent on compensating tenants for fixtures, fittings and
improvements at end of tenancy.
4.5

Revenue Surplus

4.5.1

A revenue surplus of £467,374 was achieved compared with the increased
target of £464,000.

Page 15

Agenda Item 6
Revenue Surplus
Target
Actual
As a % of Target

2017/18
£382,000
£393,682
103%

2018/19
£414,000
£411,721
99.8%

2019/20
£464,000
£464,043
100%

2020/21
£464,000
£467,374
101%

4.6

Running Costs

4.6.1

Running costs for 2020/21 were £442,674 against a target of £470,000. The
reduction in in year spend principally related to reduced spend on landlord’s
health and safety works, redundant buildings and asbestos removal.

Running Cost
(d) Per Farm
(e) Per Hectare
(f) As a % of
Income

2017/18
£6,900
£121.15
43%

2018/19
£6,646
£112.00
39%

2019/20
£7,524
£126.62
42%

2020/21
£6,810
£114.28
39.5%

4.7

Management Costs

4.7.1

Management costs for 2020/21 were £210,520 against a target of £230,000.

Management Cost
(g) Per Farm
(h) Per Hectare
(i) As a % of
Income

2017/18
£3,456
£60.68
21%

2018/19
£4,062
£68.45
24%

2019/20
£3,432
£57.75
19%

2020/21
£3,239
£54.35
19%

4.8

Capital Receipts

4.8.1

In 2020/21 the Estate generated £610,000 from the sale of the farmstead at
East Week, South Tawton, Land at Corwents Farm, Halberton, and a barn
at Lomans Farm, Broadhempston.

Capital Receipts
Actual

2017/18
2018/19
£11,130,000 £2,700,644

2019/20
£1,569,062

2020/21
£610,000

4.8.2

At year end a further 6 properties were ‘sold subject to contract and
planning’ with a potential capital receipt value of £12,957,840 expected to
be received in 2021/22 or 2022/23.

4.9

Capital Investments

4.9.1

Capital investment amounted to £954,093. Investment was made on one
NVZ compliant slurry store complete with the estates first Clean Air Strategy
compliant cover, and seven farmhouse renovation and improvement
schemes.

4.9.2

At year end a total of £215,019 of capital funding was committed to
previously approved schemes on the Estate which has been carried forward
to the new financial year. It is anticipated this money will be spent in
2021/22.

Page 16

Agenda Item 6
4.9.3

In future years the Estate is likely to require ongoing capital investment in:
(i)
Further ongoing farmhouse renovation and improvement works
(ii) Meeting the requirements of the Clean Air Strategy
(iii) Increasing controls on the storage of farm waste and feed stuffs
(iv) Renewable energy, energy efficiency, carbon offsetting and
sequestration
(v) More onerous electrical regulations for farm buildings

4.10

Net capital contribution to the Corporate Capital Programme

4.10.1 After the County Farms Estate inward capital investment expenditure is
deducted from the capital receipts generated by the sale of surplus Estate
assets, the Council contributed a net sum of £344,093 to the Estate capital
programme in 2020/21.
Net Capital
Contribution
Actual

2017/18

2018/19

£10,351,401 £1,032,260

2019/20

2020/21

£379,837

- £344,093

5

Estate Management Performance

5.1

The achievements for 2020/21 are analysed, as on previous occasions, in
two areas – namely tenant matters and property matters.

5.2

Tenant Matters







5.3

Three tenants have retired
One tenant has progressed off the Estate to a larger tenanted farm in
the private sector
One tenant has progressed by returning to his family farm and taking
major control of that farm business
One tenant has progressed internally (Bulleigh Elms Farm, Ipplepen)
Five farms (Lower Pilehayes Farm, Woodbury; Buckridge Farm,
Denbury; Lomans Farm, Broadhempston; Southcott Farm, Okehampton;
and Middle Winsham Farm, Braunton) were re-let to new tenants
One tenancy was renewed.

Property Matters
The size of the Estate increased to 3,873.61 hectares (9,571.68 acres)
during 2020/21. This was the net result of sales of the farmstead at East
Week, South Tawton and a barn at Lomans Farm, Broadhempston, and the
purchase of land adjacent to Nutcombe Farm, Rose Ash.

Size of the Estate
Hectares
Acres

2017/18
3,872.99
9,570.16

2018/19
3,867.11
9,555,50

Page 17

2019/20
3,862.34
9,543.84

2020/21
3,873.61
9,571.68

Agenda Item 6
5.4

The overall picture of the Estate as at 31 March 2021 was as follows:
2017/18

2018/19

2019/20

2020/21

Number of let residential
farms

68

65

65

65

Total AHA 86 Farms
AHA 86 Lifetime Tenancies
AHA 86 Retirement
Tenancies

18
9
9

15
8
7

14
8
6

12
7
5

Total ATA 95 (FBT) Farms
FBT’s more than seven
years
FBT’s seven years or less

50
21

50
19

51
19

53
21

29

31

32

32

5.5

Two farm cottages remain sublet by Estate tenants (with landlord’s
consent).

5.6

One traditional building remains let on a Landlord and Tenant Act 1954
lease to a micro-brewery operator.

5.7

Four farm buildings are sublet (with landlord’s consent) to rural businesses
on Landlord and Tenant Act 1954 leases.

5.8

Three blocks of bare land are let to Parish Council’s for community use
(playing field and allotments).

5.9

Six allotments are let direct to members of the public.

5.10

Two telecommunication masts are let on the County Farms Estate.

5.11

Five leases are granted for community internet apparatus installed on the
County Farms Estate.

5.12

One site is let to the Environment Agency as a remote weather station.

5.13

Nine blocks of bare land are let to non-core Estate agricultural tenants (land
at Whitsun Farm; Land at Cofton Cross; Part East Hill Farm; Part Greenhills
Farm; Part Beara Down Farm; Part Middle Winsham Farm; Part Manor
Farm; Part Manor Farm; and Part East Week Farm).

5.14

Two farmsteads remain declared surplus to the operational requirements of
the Estate and are to be advertised for sale as soon as practically possible
(Baxters Farm, Musbury; and Beara Down Farm, Bratton Fleming).

Page 18

Agenda Item 6
6

Other notable Estate achievements and events

6.1

Farmwise
Due to the Covid-19 pandemic the Farmwise events planned for 2020 were
cancelled.

6.2

Supporting Local Agricultural Colleges
For the fourth year in succession the Estate hosted the Duchy College Level
4 Apprenticeship students sitting their farm business planning module. A
mock viewing was held at Lower Henland Farm, Kentisbeare and the
Chairman of the Committee, Senior Land Agent and tenant of the holding
interviewed students virtually for the hypothetical tenancy.

6.3

North Devon Biosphere – woods for water grant – Lower Farm, High
Bickington
In spring 2021 the tenant of Lower Farm, High Bickington worked with
officers of the North Devon Biosphere to put together a grant application to
fund tree planting, form leaky dams, erect fencing and provide additional
water troughs for drinking livestock. The project delivered 0.5 hectares of
new mixed broadleaved native deciduous tree planting (600 stems), 7 new
water troughs, 642 meters of new fencing and 3 leaky dams. The scheme
should help to improve water quality and help reduce the risk of downstream
flooding.

7.

Options/Alternatives

7.1

Alternative options have been considered and discounted as they are
believed to either be contrary to current Estate policy and/or not in the best
financial interests of the Estate.

8.

Consultations/Representations/Technical Data

8.1

The views and opinions of the Devon Federation of Young Farmers Clubs and
the Estate Tenants Association will be presented by the two co-opted members
to the committee.

8.2

No other parties have been consulted and no other representations have been
received

8.3

The technical data is believed to be true and accurate.

9.

Financial Considerations

9.1

The Author is not aware of any financial issues arising from this report.

10.

Legal Considerations

10.1

The Author is not aware of any legal issues arising from this report.

Page 19

Agenda Item 6
11.

Environmental Impact Considerations (Including Climate Change)

11.1

The Author is not aware of any environmental impact (including climate
change) issues arising from this report.

12.

Equality Considerations

12.1

The Author is not aware of any equality issues arising from this report.

13.

Risk Management Considerations

13.1

The Author is not aware of any obvious risks to manage.

14.

Public Health Impact

14.1

The Author is not aware of any public health impact.

15.

Summary/Conclusions/Reasons for Recommendations

15.1

The Author has prepared this report in accordance with the findings of the
County Farms Estate Strategic Review (April 2010).

Name
Mary Davis – County Treasurer

Electoral Divisions: All
Local Government Act 1972: List of Background Papers

Contact for Enquiries:
Name: Dan Meek, Director of Property Management, NPS South West Ltd, Venture
House, One Capital Court, Bittern Road, Sowton Industrial Estate, Exeter, EX2 7FW
Contact: 01392 351066 or dan.meek@nps.co.uk
Name: Lisa Beynon, Head Accountant for Corporate Services, County Treasurer’s,
County Hall, Exeter
Contact: 01392 382876 or lisa.beynon@devon.gov.uk
Background Paper

Date

File Reference

Nil
The above mentioned Reports are published on the Council’s Website at:
http://democracy.devon.gov.uk/ieDocHome.aspx?bcr=1

Page 20

Agenda Item 6
Appendix A
COUNTY FARMS ESTATE - FINANCIAL REPORTS
FINANCIAL STATEMENT - FINAL OUTTURN 2020/21

INCOME
Rent
Other
TOTAL INCOME

2020/21

2020/21

2019/20

2018/19

2017/18

ANNUAL TARGET

OUTTURN

OUTTURN

OUTTURN

OUTTURN

£'000

£'000

£'000

£'000

£'000

(1,124)
(40)
(1,164)

(1,085)
(36)
(1,121)

(1,149)
(27)
(1,176)

(1,075)
(33)
(1,108)

(1,055)
(43)
(1,098)

20

37

87

25

114

20

37

87

25

114

100
210
10
20

69
255
5
25

86
153
4
8

80
242
11
18

81
228
2
7

61

6

101

11

7

10
14
6
431

20
11
7
398

10
11
15
388

7
14
10
393

2
14
3
344

0
2
230
4
6
7
249

0
1
211
1
6
0
219

0
1
223
1
10
2
237

0
6
264
1
3
4
278

0
3
235
(1)
7
2
246

700

654

712

696

704

(464)

(467)

(464)

(412)

(394)

EXPENDITURE
STATUTORY COSTS
Tenant Right Valuation
SUB - TOTAL

PREMISES COSTS
Building Maintenance - unforseen
Building Maintenance - programmed
Building Maintenance - Surveys
Building Maintenance - STC
Building Maintenance - other (incl. land agents
initiatives, redundant buildings, asbestos and health &
safety)
Grounds Maintenance
Rents & other landlord charges
Rates, Electricity and Water Charges
SUB - TOTAL

SUPPLIES & SERVICES
Insurance
Adverts
NPS Fees
Legal Fees
Professional Fees
Other Fees & Charges (DFYF, SHLAA, GPDO)
SUB - TOTAL
TOTAL EXPENDITURE

NET OPERATIONAL (SURPLUS)/DEFICIT

Page 21

Agenda Item 7

BSS/21/06
Farms Estate Committee
14 June 2021
The County Farms Estate
Management and Restructuring
Report of the Head of Digital Transformation and Business Support
Please note that the following recommendations are subject to consideration and
determination by the Committee before taking effect.
Recommendation(s):
That the Committee approves the recommendations as set out in the opening
paragraph of sections 1 and 2 of this report.

1.0

Land at Combefishacre Farm, Ipplepen

1.1

That the land at Combefishacre Farm, Ipplepen amounting to 11.18 hectares
(27.62 acres) be advertised to let in internal competition between the tenants
of Bulleigh Elms Farm, Ipplepen; Lomans Farm, Broadhempston; Fairfield
Farm, Denbury; Coppa Dolla Farm, Denbury; Buckridge Farm, Denbury and
Cobberton Farm, Dartington on a Farm Business Tenancy for a term of up to
five years commencing 25 March 2022, subject to terms being agreed.

1.2

The Ipplepen Estate comprises:
(a) Bulleigh Elms Farm
(b) Part Combefishacre Land
Total

1.3

89.16 hectares (220.31 acres)
11.18 hectares (27.62 acres)
100.34 hectares (247.93 acres)

In terms of Authority for the most recent period of occupation, Members
resolved at its meeting of 28 June 2016, under minute reference FE/14(b)
Land at Combefishacre Farm, Ipplepen:
‘that the 11.18 hectares or thereabouts of land at Combefishacre Farm,
Ipplepen be advertised to let in internal competition between the tenants of
Bulleigh Elms Farm, Ipplepen; Lomans Farm, Broadhempston; Fairfield
Farm, Denbury; Coppa Dolla Farm, Denbury; Buckridge Farm, Denbury and
Cobberton Farm, Dartington on a five year Farm Business Tenancy
commencing 25 March 2017, subject to terms being agreed’

1.4

Following an internal tender exercise in 2016, the most recent occupier of the
land has been the tenant of Cobberton Farm, Dartington.

Page 23

Agenda Item 7
1.5

There are a number of new estate tenants who have taken farms in the area
recently and may also wish to secure a tenancy of the land at Combefishacre.
It is therefore proposed that all existing estate tenants within a reasonable
geographical range of the land be invited to tender for it.

2.0

Part Middle Winsham Farm, Braunton

2.1

It is recommended that the barns and 0.16 acres or thereabouts of land
forming NG 9497 be declared permanently surplus to the operational
requirements of the Estate and sold on the open market.

2.2

The Braunton Estate comprises:
(a)
(b)
(c)

Middle Winsham Farm
–
Part Middle Winsham Farm Barn at Middle Winsham -

40.22 hectares (99.37 acres)
50.03 hectares (123.93 acres)
0.06 hectares (0.16 acres)

–

90.31 hectares (223.46 acres)

Total
2.3

A stone and tile roof barn and small plot of land forming NG 9497 at Middle
Winsham Farm, Braunton (c above) was kept in hand and not let when the
main farm (a above) and additional bare land (b above) was relet from 25
March 2021.

2.4

This property has been identified as an asset that might be capable of being
sold on the open market at a premium (greater than existing/agricultural use
value).

2.5

The barns are potentially suitable for conversion to a residential dwelling
subject to securing permitted development rights under Class Q of the Town
and Country Planning (General Permitted Development) (England) Order 2015
or full planning permission.

2.6

The traditional barn was scheduled redundant in the earlier Farm Business
Tenancy expiring 25 March 2021. It would not add any material rental value to
the farm. Over the course of any further tenancy term, it is likely to give rise to
considerable cost to the county farms estate in terms of maintenance and
repair liabilities. The traditional barn is thus considered more of a liability to the
estate than an asset. It does however present a potentially capital receipt for
the County Council.

3.0

Options/Alternatives

3.1

Alternative options have been considered and discounted as they are believed
to either be contrary to current Estate policy and/or not in the best financial
interests of the Estate.

4.0

Consultations/Representations/Technical Data

Page 24

Agenda Item 7
4.1

The views and opinions of the Devon Federation of Young Farmers Clubs and
the Estate Tenants Association will be presented by the two co-opted
members to the committee.

4.2

No other parties have been consulted and no other representations have been
received

4.3

The technical data is believed to be true and accurate.

5.0

Financial Considerations

5.1

The Author is not aware of any financial issues arising from this report.

6.0

Legal Considerations

6.1

The Author is not aware of any legal issues arising from this report.

7.0

Environmental Impact Considerations (Including Climate Change)

7.1

The Author is not aware of any environmental impact (including climate
change) issues arising from this report.

8.0

Equality Considerations

8.1

The Author is not aware of any equality issues arising from this report.

9.0

Risk Management Considerations

9.1

The Author is not aware of any obvious risks to manage.

10.0

Public Health Impact

10.1

The Author is not aware of any public health impact.

11.0

Summary/Conclusions/Reasons for Recommendations

11.1

The Author has prepared this report in accordance with the findings of the
County Farms Estate Strategic Review (April 2010).

Name
Rob Parkhouse, Head of Digital Transformation and Business Support

Electoral Divisions: Ipplepen & The Kerswells; Braunton Rural

Page 25

Agenda Item 7
Local Government Act 1972: List of Background Papers

Contact for Enquiries:
Name: Dan Meek, Director of Property Management, NPS South West Ltd, Venture
House, One Capital Court, Bittern Road, Sowton Industrial Estate, Exeter, EX2 7FW
Contact: 01392 351066 or dan.meek@nps.co.uk
Background Paper

Date

File Reference

Nil
The above mentioned Reports are published on the Council’s Website at:
http://democracy.devon.gov.uk/ieDocHome.aspx?bcr=1

Page 26

